
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Tentative Agenda for Town Council 

Meeting 

 

February 9, 2015 
 

Commencing at 7:00 PM 

 
 
 

P.O. Box 418 

Kensington, PEI 

C0B 1M0 

Phone: (902) 836-3781 

Fax: (902) 836-3741 

Email: mail@townofkensington.com 

Web Site: www.townofkensington.com 
 

 
 

 

Please ensure all cell phones and other electronic devices are turned 

off or placed on non-audible mode during the meeting. 

 

 
 

mailto:mail@townofkensington.com
http://www.townofkensington.com/


 
 

Town of Kensington 
Regular Meeting of Town Council 

February 9, 2015 
 
Commencing at 7:00 PM  

 
ITEM 1:  CALL OF MEETING TO ORDER AND WELCOME 
 
Presiding:  Mayor Rowan Caseley 
 
 
ITEM 2:  APPROVAL OF TENTATIVE AGENDA 
 
Action: Additional agenda items requiring discussion, if known, should be 

identified at this time. 
 
 
ITEM 3:  DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
Action:  Members of Town Council who believe they may have a conflict of 

interest on any matter that will be discussed at this meeting should declare 
that potential conflict at this time, withdraw at the time of discussion and 
vacate the Council Chambers during deliberation and decision. 

 
 
ITEM 4: DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 
 
 
ITEM 5: APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

 
Background: The draft minutes of the January 12, 2015 regular meeting of Town 

Council are included in the tentative agenda package for review.   
 

Action: Motion or motions to approve the minutes, with or without amendment. 
 
 
ITEM 6: BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES 
 
Action: Questions or clarifications. 
 
 
ITEM 7: COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Background: The Public Safety Committee, Community Services Committee, Culture 

and Wellness Committee, Finance and Administration Committee and the 
Mayor’s reports are provided to Council members in advance of the 
regular monthly Council meeting. Periodic updates by email or other 
correspondence on specific activities are provided throughout the month to 
Council by Administration; additional information/reports may be given at 
Council meetings. Any reports provided and any building permit 



applications constitute part of the Tentative Agenda package. 
Chairpersons present for each of the listed Council Committees are 
normally called upon for reports and/or updates as may be considered 
appropriate. 

 
 

7.1 Public Safety Committee  – Councillor David Doucette 

7.2 Community Services Committee – Councillor Jeff Spencer 

7.3 Wellness and Culture Committee – Councillor Coreen Pickering 

7.4 Finance and Administration Committee – Deputy Mayor Rodney 
Mann 
 

7.5 Mayor’s Report – Mayor Caseley will report on the past month’s 
activities, matters concerned with development and/or on other 
matters that may be considered relevant. 

 
Action: Reports and follow-up questions or discussion. 
 
 
ITEM 8: COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE REPORTS 
 
Background: Town Council’s representative on the FPEIM Board of Directors, Chamber 

of Commerce Board of Directors, Heritage Library Board of Directors and 
any other relevant Boards or Commissions may be called upon by the 
Mayor to deliver a verbal report. 

 
Action: Comments/Questions 
 
 
ITEM 9: MUNICIPAL CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
Background:  Circulated with the tentative agenda package is the Kensington Town 

Council Municipal Code of Conduct that was developed by the Federation 
of Prince Edward Island Municipalities as part of a Municipal Capacity 
Building project in 2009.   

 
Action:   Each member of Town Council will be requested to affirm their support of 

the Code of Conduct by signing two copies; one to be given to each 
Councillor and the other to be retained as an official record of the Town. 

 
 
ITEM 10:   CORRESPONDENCE 
 
 
ITEM 11:  COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE (IN – CAMERA) 
 

 One Item of a Property Nature 
 
 
ITEM 12:  OTHER MATTERS AND/OR ADJOURNMENT  



Town of Kensington 
Minutes of Regular Council Meeting 

Monday, January 12, 2015 
 7:00 PM  

 

Council Members Present:  Mayor Rowan Caseley; Councillors: Deputy Mayor Mann, 

Spencer, Mill, MacLean, Pickering and Doucette  

 

Staff Members Present: Chief Administrative Officer, Geoff Baker; Deputy 

Administrator, Wendy MacKinnon; Administrative 

Assistant, Kim Caseley; Police Chief, Lewis Sutherland 

 

Visitors Present: Nancy McPhee, Journal Pioneer 

 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 
1.  Calling of Meeting to Order 

 

1.1 Mayor Caseley called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM and welcomed Council 

members, staff and visitors.  
 

2. Approval of Tentative Agenda 
 

2.1 Moved by Councillor Spencer, seconded by Councillor MacLean to approve the 

tentative agenda for the January 12, 2015 regular meeting of Town Council. 

Unanimously carried. 

 

2.2  Mayor Caseley informed everyone that the Council Meeting agenda and 

correspondence package is now available on the town website the Friday prior to 

the regular council meeting.   
  

3. Declaration of Conflict of Interest 
 

3.1 Mayor Caseley discussed that Members of Town Council who believe they may 

have a conflict of interest on any matter that will be discussed at this meeting 

should declare that potential conflict at this time, withdraw at the time of discussion 

and vacate the Council Chambers during deliberation and decision. 

 
4. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 

4.1 Moved by Councillor Mill, seconded by Councillor Pickering to approve the 

minutes from the December 8, 2014 regular meeting of Town Council. 

Unanimously carried.  
 
4.2 Moved by Councillor Spencer, seconded by Councillor Doucette to approve the 

minutes from the December 17, 2014 special meeting of Town Council. 

Unanimously carried. 

 



4.3 Moved by Councillor Spencer, seconded by Councillor Pickering to approve the 

minutes from the January 6, 2015 regular meeting of Town Council. 

Unanimously carried. 
 
5. Business Arising from Minutes 
 

5.1 December 8, 2014 – Regular Council Meeting 
 
5.1.1 Access Advisor has not started the accessibility assessments on Town 

owned properties.  

 

5.2 December 14, 2014 – Special Council Meeting 
  
 5.2.1 Nil 
 
5.3 January 6, 2015 – Special Council Meeting 
  
 5.3.1 Nil  
 

6.  Committee Reports 

 
6.1    Public Safety Committee  
 

6.1.1 Moved by Councillor Doucette, seconded by Councillor Spencer to adopt 

the December 2014 Public Safety Report as presented by Councillor 

Doucette. Unanimously carried. 

 
6.1.2 Moved by Councillor Doucette, seconded by Councillor Pickering to 

adopt the December 2014 Fire Report as presented by Councillor 

Doucette. Unanimously carried.  

 

6.1.3 Moved by Councillor Doucette, seconded by Councillor Spencer That the 

contract for the 2015 Policy Development and Fire Services Master Plan 

project be awarded to W.G. Hogan Fire Safety Specialties as per their 

proposal dated November 17, 2014 in the amount of $12,600 plus HST. 

Unanimously carried.  

 
6.1.4 Moved by Councillor Doucette, seconded by Councillor MacLean to 

approve the December 2014 Police Statistical Report prepared by Chief 

Sutherland. Unanimously carried. 

 

6.2  Community Services Committee  
 

6.2.1 Moved by Councillor Spencer, seconded by Councillor Doucette to 

approve the December 2014 Community Services Committee report as 

presented by Councillor Spencer. Unanimously carried.  

 
 



6.2.2   Moved by Councillor Spencer, seconded by Councillor MacLean to 

approve the building permit summary for the month of December 2014. 

Unanimously carried.  

 

6.2.3 Councillor Pickering inquired about the Confederation Trail sign on Hwy 2 

which was damaged by graffiti. CAO, Geoff Baker will speak with the 

Province to notify them of the damage.  

 
6.2.4 Councillor Spencer requested that staff speak with the Department of 

Transportation regarding the required depth of snow before snow removal 

crews will be called out.   
 
6.3 Culture and Wellness Committee  

 
6.3.1  Councillor Pickering thanked staff for organizing the Mayor’s New Year’s 

Levee.  

 

6.3.2 Winter Carnival will be held February 11-15, 2015. More details will be 

available soon.  

 
6.4 Finance and Administration Committee Report 

 
6.4.1  Moved by Deputy Mayor Mann, seconded by Councillor MacLean to 

adopt the Finance and Administration Committee report for the month 

of December 2014, as presented by Deputy Mayor Mann. Unanimously 

carried.  

 

6.4.2 Moved by Deputy Mayor Mann, seconded by Councillor Spencer to 

approve the recommendation by the CAO that the CAO, Police Chief, 

Deputy Administrator and Public Works Supervisor be given a salary 

increase according to CPI and all other exempt staff receive an increase 

in line with the current CBA at 2.5% for 2015. Unanimously carried.  

 
6.4.3 Moved by Deputy Mayor Mann, seconded by Councillor Spencer to 

approve the payment of bills in the amount of $$197,728.41 for the 

month of December 2014. Unanimously carried 
 
6.4.3 Moved by Deputy Mayor Mann, seconded by Councillor Spencer to 

approve the December 2014 Summary Income Statement as presented 

by Deputy Mayor Mann. Unanimously carried. 
 

6.5  Mayor’s Report 

6.5.1 Moved by Deputy Mayor Mann, seconded by Councillor MacLean to 

approve the Mayors report for the month of December 2014 as presented 

by Mayor Caseley. Unanimously carried.  

 



7. Council Representative Reports 

 7.1 The Kensington Heritage Library’s 80
th

 Birthday Celebration was attended by the 

Mayor, CAO and Councillor Mill. It was a great celebration and good recognition 

for the Kensington Library.   

8. 2015 Welcome PEI Handbook 

 8.1 Moved by Councillor MacLean, seconded by Councillor Doucette THAT Town Council 

approve the procurement of a full page advertisement in the 2015 edition of the Welcome 

PEI Handbook and to become a featured advertiser on welcomepei.com for 2015 at a 

total cost of $3,925.00 plus HST. Unanimously carried.  

9. Correspondence  

9.1 An invitation to the Charlottetown Police Services Gala Dinner on Friday, 

February 13, 2015 in honor of A. Paul Smith on the 20
th

 Anniversary of his 

appointment as Chief of Police. Council will purchase a half table (5 seats) at the 

cost of $300.00.  

 
9.2 A letter from the Province of PEI Infrastructure Secretariat to notify the town that 

the funding request for the Pleasant Street Lift Station Replacement was 

unsuccessful.   

 

9.3 A note of thanks from Buddy McEwen for his 90
th

 Birthday wishes.  

 

9.4 An email from Ruby Cousins with the Kensington Senior Surfers with the January 

schedule of events happening at the centre.   

 

9.5 A copy of a letter from Stewart McKelvey’s office (representing Eastlink) to Mr. 

Roy Main, the CAO for the City of Charlottetown, regarding the City’s recent 

decision and the level of transparency shown regarding their recent RFP process for 

local and long distance telephone services.  

 

 Moved by Councillor Pickering, seconded by Councillor Spencer to recess for 10 minutes at 

7:40 PM. Unanimously carried.  

 Mayor Caseley called the meeting back to order at 7:50 PM 

10. Committee of the Whole 

 10.1 Moved by Councillor Spencer, seconded by Councillor MacLean to commence 

into a Committee of the Whole meeting at 7:50 PM. Unanimously carried.  

10.2 Moved by Councillor MacLean, seconded by Councillor Mill to come out of the 

Committee of the Whole meeting at 8:02 PM. Unanimously carried. 

11. Adjournment 

Moved by Councillor Spencer, seconded by Councillor MacLean to adjourn the meeting 

at 8:03 PM. Unanimously carried. 



 

 

______________________________   _________________________________ 

Wendy MacKinnon,  Rowan Caseley, 

Deputy Administrator  Mayor 



TOWN OF KENSINGTON 
Public Safety Committee Report 

Tuesday, January 6, 2015 
6:30 PM 

 

 

Committee Members Present: Chair, Councillor David Doucette, Councillor Jeff Spencer, Councillor 

Coreen Pickering 

 

Staff Members Present:  Chief Administrative Officer, Geoff Baker, Police Chief Lewis 

Sutherland, A/Fire Chief Rodney Hickey 

 

Visitors: Nil 

 

 

 

1. Call of Meeting to Order and Welcome 
 

1.1  Chair Doucette called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM and welcomed committee members  

and staff. 

 

 

2. Declaration of Conflict of Interest 
 

2.1 No declarations of conflict of interest were made. 

 

 

3. Delegations/Presentations 
 

3.1 Nil 

 

 

4. Fire Services 
 

4.1 The monthly fire statistical report was reviewed by the committee. The statistical report 

will be motioned for approval following the delivery of this report. 

 

4.2 As part of the annual servicing of the pumper trucks it was identified that Truck Number 5 

required some major repairs to the pump unit. A quote was provided by G Leblanc Fire 

Truck Repair Ltd. out of New Brunswick in the amount of $4,947.26 to affect the necessary 

repairs. The Committee directed the CAO to move forward with the repairs as required.   

 

4.3 The Committee considered a request from Island EMS to post an ambulance out of the 

Kensington Fire Hall. The request includes parking an ambulance in one of the bays and 

use of the kitchen/lounge if possible. Their stated reason for the request is to improve and 

provide quicker service to residents of the area. The Committee is recommending approval. 

A motion will be made following the delivery of this report to approve the request.       

 

 

 

 

 



5. Emergency Measures 
 
5.1 Staff continue to progress on updating the Town’s Emergency Measures Plan and Bylaw. 

Mayor Caseley has agreed to dedicate some time to updating contact information, etc.  
 

6. Police Services 
 
6.1 The monthly police statistical report was reviewed by the committee. The statistical report 

will be motioned for approval following the delivery of this report. 

 

6.2 Discussion was held on the procurement of electronic speed limit signs for key areas of the 

Town. A Request for Decision (RFD) is being circulated with the tentative agenda package 

recommending Town Council move forward with the purchase of four (4) of the speed 

radar signs to be installed in the following areas: 

 

 Entering the school zone along Victoria Street East (vicinity of town boundary at 

speed limit change from 90 km/h to 50 km/h and entrance to school zone heading 

east) 

 Victoria Street West (vicinity of Welcome to Kensington sign) 

 Broadway Street South (vicinity of Welcome to Kensington sign) 

 

 

6.3 The Committee discussed two transportation safety matters that were referred from the 

Community Services Committee. 

 

 The Committee deliberated on whether or not Francis Street should be converted 

back to a two way street. It was decided that, given the safety issues that would be 

created with traffic egressing onto Broadway Street from Francis Street, that the 

street should remain one way. When the Town moves forward with line painting 

in the spring of 2015, pavement markings (arrows, lane separation, etc.) would be 

placed in the area to direct traffic safely. 

 

 The Committee deliberated on parking issues surrounding the Broadway Street 

North intersections with Commercial Street, School Street and Pleasant Street. It 

was decided that, along with increased police enforcement, the Town would mark 

areas in the vicinity of the intersections to ensure that vehicles are not parked in 

proximity to the intersection. This should improve visibility issues in these areas. 

The Public Safety Committee directed staff to move forward with this initiative 

and to re-evaluate in 2016. 

 

7. Other Matters 
 

7.1 Nil 

 
 

8. The meeting was adjourned at 7:24 PM.  



MEMO 

JANUARY 2015 

THE KENSINGTON FIRE DEPARTMENT RESPONDED TO 6 CALLS IN THE MONTH OF 

JANUARY.  THE AVERAGE ATTENDANCE TO THE CALLS WAS 15 FIREFIGHTERS. OUR 

MONTHLY TRAINING SESSION HAD 21 FIREFIGHTERS IN ATTENDANCE.  NEW 

LONDON, CRAPAUD, KINKORA FIRE DEPARTMENTS ATTENDED AN INFORMATION 

TRAINING SESSION ON NATURAL GAS.  THE GUEST SPEAKER WAS THE NATURAL GAS 

MANAGER FROM CAVENDISH FARMS. 

HERE IS THE BREAKDOWN OF CALLS: 

JANUARY 8 – MEDICAL FIRST RESPONDER TO NORTH BEDEQUE; 1 TRUCK & 11 

FIREFIGHTERS. 

JANUARY 22 – MVC ON ROUTE 2 IN HAZEL GROVE; 2 TRUCKS & 13 FIREFIGHTERS. 

JANUARY 25 – LIFT ASSIST IN NORTH BEDEQUE; 1 TRUCK & 14 FIREFIGHTERS. 

JANUARY 26 – MVC ON ROUTE 2 IN NORBORO; 2 TRUCKS & 18 FIREFIGHTERS. 

JANUARY 28 – MVC ON ROUTE 2 IN NORBORO; 1 TRUCK & 17 FIREFIGHTERS. 

JANUARY 30 – MVC IN TRAVELLER’S REST; 2 TRUCKS & 15 FIREFIGHTERS. 

Rodney  
Deputy Chief 

 



Police Department Occurrence Report Sumary 2015

Description Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD % Total

911 Act 0 0.00%

Abandon Vehicle 0 0.00%

Abduction 0 0.00%

Alarms 3 3 6.38%

Animal Calls 0 0.00%

Arson 0 0.00%

Assault PO 1 1 2.13%

Assault with Weapon 0 0.00%

Assaults (Level 1) 2 2 4.26%

Assistance Calls 10 10 21.28%

Breach of Peace 0 0.00%

Breach of Recognizance 0 0.00%

Break and Enter (business) 0 0.00%

Break and Enter (other) 1 1 2.13%

Break and Enter (residence) 0 0.00%

Carry concealed weapon 0 0.00%

Child Pornography 0 0.00%

Child Welfare 0 0.00%

Coroner's Act 0 0.00%

Crime Prevention 0 0.00%

Criminal Harassment 0 0.00%

Dangerous Driving 0 0.00%

Disturbing the Peace 1 1 2.13%

Dog Act 0 0.00%

Driving while disqualified 1 1 2.13%

Drug Charges 1 1 2.13%

Excise Act 0 0.00%

Fail to Comply Probation 0 0.00%

Fail to comply undertaking 0 0.00%

Fail to remain at scene of accident 0 0.00%

Family Relations Act 2 2 4.26%

Fingerprints taken 0 0.00%



Police Department Occurrence Report Sumary 2015

Description Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD % Total

Fire Prevention Act 0 0.00%

Firearm Act 0 0.00%

Forcible confinement 0 0.00%

Fraud 0 0.00%

Harrassing Phone Calls 2 2 4.26%

Impaired Driver 3 3 6.38%

Information Files 2 2 4.26%

Injury Accidents 0 0.00%

Liquor Offences 1 1 2.13%

Litter Act 0 0.00%

Lost and Found 1 1 2.13%

Luring Minors 0 0.00%

Mental Health Act 1 1 2.13%

Mischief 0 0.00%

Motor Vehicle Accidents 0 0.00%

Motor Vehicle Act 5 5 10.64%

Municipal Bylaws 0 0.00%

Off Road Vehicle Act 2 2 4.26%

Other Criminal Code 0 0.00%

Person Reported Missing 1 1 2.13%

Possession of restricted weapon 0 0.00%

Property Check 0 0.00%

Resist Arrest 0 0.00%

Roadside Suspensions 0 0.00%

Robbery 0 0.00%

Sexual Assaults  / Interference 1 1 2.13%

STEP (Integrated Traffic Enforcement) 0 0.00%

Sudden Death 0 0.00%

Suspicious Persons / Vehicle 0 0.00%

Theft Of Motor Vehicle 0 0.00%

Theft Over $5000 0 0.00%

Theft Under $5000 0 0.00%



Police Department Occurrence Report Sumary 2015

Description Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD % Total

Traffic Offences 0 0.00%

Trespass Act 0 0.00%

Trespass at Night 0 0.00%

Uttering Threats 1 1 2.13%

SOTS Issued 5 5 11%

Total Incidents 47 47 100%

HTA Warnings 7 7

Foot Patrols in hours 3 3

School Visits 0

Please note stats up to Jan 29/15



 Town of Kensington - Request for Decision 
 

Topic: Electronic Speed Radar Signs 

 

Date: February 2, 2015 

 

Proposal Summary:  
 

A radar speed sign is an interactive sign, generally constructed of a series of LEDs that displays 

vehicle speed as motorists approach. The purpose of radar speed signs is to slow cars down by making 

drivers aware when they are driving at unsafe speeds. Radar speed signs have proven to be useful as a 

traffic calming tool. They are used in many municipalities across Canada and Prince Edward Island as 

an effective means of slowing traffic.  

 

The Public Safety Committee has held discussions on purchasing three (3) units in 2015 to be located 

in the following areas: 

 

1. School zone along Victoria Street East (vicinity of town boundary at speed limit change from 

90 km/h to 50 km/h) 

2. Victoria Street West (vicinity of speed limit change from 90 km/h to 50 km/h) 

3. Broadway Street South (vicinity of speed limit change from 90 km/h to 50 km/h) 

 

Four companies were contacted to provide quotes on providing three units for the Town. Quotes were 

received from Kalitec Inc. and Davtech as follows: 

 

1. Kalitec - $23,437.65 including applicable taxes.  

Includes: Radar speed sign with USB port, Bluetooth connection, Two-way traffic statistics, 

Mounting bracket, 100 W solar panel, mounting post and anchors. 

 

2. Davtech - $13,242.24 including applicable taxes. 

Includes: Radar speed sign (complete with 100 W solar panel, 24 hour timer, mounting bracket 

for solar panel, battery, antenna, software, tuning fork,), Traffic counter stat package, warning 

light. Note: Davtech does not include mounting pole and brackets. 

 

The Committee discussed and are recommending that an additional unit be installed along Victoria 

Street East at the entrance to the school zone heading east. Staff were requested to contact Davtech, as 

they were the low bidder, and request them to update their quote to include a fourth unit. A revised 

quote has been received in the amount of $17,656.32 including taxes.  

   

  

Benefits:   
 

1. Should reduce speeds in the school zone and other areas indicated. 

  

 

Disadvantages: 
 

1. None noted. 
 
Policy Implications: 
 
The Town’s Official Plan states the following as it relates to transportation safety.  



 
Policy PT-3 – Safety 
 

1. It shall be the policy of Council to improve transportation safety in the Town. 

 

Options: 
 

1. Purchase 4 electronic speed radar signs and install in the areas indicated as recommended by 

the Public Safety Committee.  
2. Purchase a lesser number of units. 
3. Not proceed with project and investigate alternative speed calming measures. 

 
Bids Received:  
 

 Davtech Analytical Services - $13,242.24 Taxes Incl. (Updated to $17,656.32 to include 

additional unit) 
 Signalisation Kalitec Inc. - $23,437.65 Taxes Incl.  

 
Costs:  
 
$17,656.32 including taxes 

 

 

Source of Funding: 
 

2015 Capital Budget 

Recommendation/Comments:  
 
It is recommended by the CAO and the Public Safety Committee that Town Council consider and 

adopt the following motion: 

 

THAT Town Council award the contract for the supply of four (4) electronic speed radar signs to 

Davtech Analytical Services as per their quote dated February 5, 2015 in the amount of $17,656.32 

plus applicable taxes.  

 

 



 

Agenda 
 

Public Safety Committee 
Regular Meeting – First Tuesday of the Month – 6:30 pm 

Council Chambers – Kensington Town Hall 
 

Chair:    Councillor David Doucette 
Vice Chair:   Councillor Jeff Spencer 
 
Committee Members:  Councillor Coreen Pickering 
    Mayor Rowan Caseley 
 
Staff Members:  CAO, Geoff Baker 
    Police Chief Lewis Sutherland 
    Deputy Fire Chief Rodney Hickey 
     
 
 
Please ensure all cell phones and other electronic devices are turned off or placed on non-audible 

mode during the meeting.  

 
ITEM 1: CALL OF MEETING TO ORDER AND WELCOME 
 
Presiding: Councillor David Doucette 

 
 
ITEM 2: DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
Action:  Members of the Committee who believe they may have a conflict of interest on 

any matter that will be discussed at this meeting should declare that potential 

conflict at this time, withdraw at the time of discussion and vacate the Council 

Chambers during deliberation and decision. 

 

 

ITEM 3: DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 
 

 

ITEM 4: FIRE SERVICES 
 4.1  Monthly Fire Report - Statistics Report 

 4.2 Request from Island EMS for use of Kensington Fire Hall 

 4.3     Other Matters 

 

 
ITEM 5: EMERGENCY MEASURES   

5.1  Update on Town of Kensington Emergency Measures Plan (including the  

Emergency Measures Bylaw) 



Agenda 
Town of Kensington – Public Safety Committee 

 

5.2  Other Matters 

  

 
ITEM 6: POLICE SERVICES  
  6.1  Monthly Police Report – Statistical  

 6.2     Update Speed Control Lights 

 6.3 Francis Street – 2 way traffic consideration 

 6.4 Broadway Street North Parking Issues 

 6.5 Other Matter   
 
ITEM 7: OTHER MATTERS 
 
 
ITEM 8: ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

 



TOWN OF KENSINGTON 
Community Services Committee Report 

Wednesday, January 21, 2015 
6:00 PM 

 

 

Committee Members Present: Chair, Councillor Jeff Spencer, Councillor Marvin Mill, 

Councillor Mack MacLean, Mayor Rowan Caseley 

 

Staff Members Present: Chief Administrative Officer, Geoff Baker 

 

Visitors: Nil 

 

 

 

 

1. Call of Meeting to Order and Welcome 
 

1.1  Councillor Spencer called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM and welcomed 

committee members and staff. 

 

2. Declaration of Conflict of Interest 
 

2.1 No declarations of conflict of interest were made. 

 

3. Delegations/Presentations 
 

3.1 Nil 

 

4. Property Matters 
 

4.1 The Building Permit Summary Report was reviewed by the Committee. One 

building permit application was approved by staff. A copy of the report is being 

circulated with the tentative agenda package and will be motioned for approval 

following the acceptance of this report.    

 

4.2 There were no building permit applications requiring Council’s approval.  

 

4.3 There were no re-zoning applications this month. 

 

 
5. Public Works 

 



5.1 Public Works operations are running smoothly. There have been some repairs 

needed on equipment and staff has worked considerable overtime due to the recent 

snow storms.   

 

5.2 Numerous windows in the Town Hall building have been identified as requiring 

repairs. The work should be covered by the manufacturer’s warranty. The tender for 

the re-shingling of the freight shed, blacksmith shop and swimming pool building 

has not yet been issued.   

 

5.3 Considerable discussion was held on parking issues in town. More specifically, 

parking along Broadway Street North in proximity to the Commercial Street, 

School Street and Pleasant Street intersections. The issue was referred to the Public 

Safety Committee for further discussion. 

 

5.4 The Committee discussed transportation safety issues around Francis Street. 

Discussion was held around the possibility of converting Francis Street to a two 

way street or improving the roadway markings to make traffic movement in the area 

safer, specifically at the west end intersection with Imperial Street. The matter was 

referred to the Public Safety Committee for further deliberation. 

   

  
6. Infrastructure 

 
6.1 Water and Sewer – Councillor MacLean noted that that the water valve adjacent to 

his property has still not been repaired. Staff will complete the repair as soon as 

reasonably possible. The valve is functioning properly however it is no longer flush 

with the asphalt and could cause issues around snow clearing, etc.      

 

6.2 Buildings – Staff were directed to update the Kensington sign located on the roof of 

the train station. This will be completed as time and weather permits.  

 

6.3 The Committee discussed the requirement for a Capital Investment Plan requiring 

completion to access Gas Tax Funds. The Committee discussed various priority 

projects. The Committee will work with staff over the next several months to 

complete the plan. Staff were directed to develop cost estimates for two projects: 

sidewalk replacement along Broadway Street South (including utility pole 

relocation), and Street and sidewalk replacement/installation along School Street 

from the Centennial Drive intersection to the Broadway Street North intersection. 

 
 



7. Other Matters 
 

7.1 Staff recommended that the Town begin to move forward with the surveying of 

right of way’s throughout the Town, including all town owned streets. Staff will 

contact WSP to provide an updated quote to complete the required work. 

 
 

8. The meeting was adjourned at 7:43 PM.  
 



BUILDING PERMITS SUMMARY 
February 2015 

              
 

PERMIT 
NUMBER 

 
DATE PERMIT 

ISSUED 

 
PROPERTY 
NUMBER 

 
APPLICANT’S NAME AND ADDRESS 

 
TELEPHONE 

NUMBER 

 
 PERMIT STATUS 

 
N
E
W 

 
R
E
N 

 
O
T
H 

 
TYPE 

 
ESTIMATED 

COST 

 
ESTIMATED START AND 

COMPLETION DATE 

16-14   LeRoy Young 
57 Third Street, Kensington 

902-954-0981 Approved X   O $3,000 Start: October 2014 
Finish: November 2014 

      Construct garden shed. 

          $  
Start:  
Finish:  

      
DESCRIPTION: 

 
 

       

 

 

 

   
$ 

 
Start:  
Finish: 

      
DESCRIPTION: 

 
 

        

 

 

 

 $  
Start:  
Finish :   

      
DESCRIPTION: 

 
 

          $ Start:  
Finish : 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
DESCRIPTION: 

 
 

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION 

R Residential Single  I-C Industrial (commercial) 
D Residential Duplex  INST Institutional 
M Residential Multi-Family ED Educational 
A Agricultural   O Other         







 

Agenda 
 

Community Services 
Regular Meeting – Third Wednesday of the Month – 6:00 pm 

Council Chambers – Kensington Town Hall 
 

Chair:    Councillor Jeff Spencer 
Vice Chair:   Councillor Mack MacLean 
 
Committee Members:  Councillor Marvin Mill 
    Mayor Rowan Caseley 
 
Staff Members:  CAO, Geoff Baker 
     
 
 
Please ensure all cell phones and other electronic devices are turned off or placed on non-audible 

mode during the meeting.  

 
ITEM 1: CALL OF MEETING TO ORDER AND WELCOME 
 
Presiding: Councillor Jeff Spencer  

 
 
ITEM 2: DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
Action:  Members of the Committee who believe they may have a conflict of interest on 

any matter that will be discussed at this meeting should declare that potential 

conflict at this time, withdraw at the time of discussion and vacate the Council 

Chambers during deliberation and decision. 

 

 

ITEM 3: DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 
 

 

ITEM 4: PROPERTY MATTERS 
 
 4.1 Building Permit Summary  

 4.2 Building Permits Requiring Approval  

 4.3 Other Matters 

 

 
ITEM 5: PUBLIC WORKS 
 

 5.1 Monthly Report 

5.2 Building Maintenance 



Agenda 
Town of Kensington – Community Services Committee 

 

5.3 Parking Spaces 

5.4 Other Matters 

 
ITEM 6: INFRASTRUCTURE  
 

  6.1 Water and Sewer 

  6.2 Buildings 

                        6.3 Gas Tax Capital Investment Plan 

  6.4 Other Matters 

 
 
ITEM 7: OTHER MATTERS 
 
 
ITEM 8: ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

 



 

Report 
 

Wellness and Culture Committee 
Regular Meeting – Fourth Wednesday of the Month – 6:30 pm 

Council Chambers – Kensington Town Hall 
 

Chair:    Councillor Coreen Pickering 
Vice Chair:   Councillor Marvin Mill 
 
Committee Members:  Councillor David Doucette 
    Mayor Rowan Caseley 
 
Staff Members:  CAO, Geoff Baker 
    CGC Manager, Robert Wood 
 
 
Please ensure all cell phones and other electronic devices are turned off or placed on non-audible 

mode during the meeting.  

 
ITEM 1: CALL OF MEETING TO ORDER AND WELCOME 
 
Presiding: Councillor Coreen Pickering  

 
 
ITEM 2: DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
Action:  Members of the Committee who believe they may have a conflict of interest on 

any matter that will be discussed at this meeting should declare that potential 

conflict at this time, withdraw at the time of discussion and vacate the Council 

Chambers during deliberation and decision. 

 

ITEM 3: DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 
 

 

ITEM 4: COMMUNITY GARDENS COMPLEX 
 

 4.1 Status of Kool Kash 50/50 
 

Kool Kash remains strong. Staff continue to search for ways to increase 

enrolment in the program.  

  

 4.2 Status of Wind Turbine 
 

No change from previous months report. The Town is awaiting approval and 

confirmation from the Provincial Government that the turbines can be 

disposed of to WEICAN.   

  

 



Agenda 
Town of Kensington – Wellness and Culture Committee 

 

 4.3 Status of Digital Advertising Opportunity 
  

 Digital advertising opportunities have been suspended at this point in favour 

of seeking naming rights partners for the Community Gardens Complex. The 

CAO presented an RFP to the Committee to invite corporate partners to be 

naming rights partners of the Complex. The RFP will be issued shortly.   

  

 4.4 Update on Major Midget Atlantic Championship – April 2015 
 

 It was noted that the tournament organizing committee have created a website 

for the event. The website is now up and running. Councillors are encouraged 

to visit the website. 

  

 The organizing committee has requested that the Town provide the following 

in preparation for the event: 

 

o Display area to hold trophies, medals, etc. - The Committee is 

recommending that a table can be set up in the cafeteria area to 

hold trophies, medals, etc. 

o Dressing room touch ups (i.e. paint, etc.) – The Committee 

directed staff to move forward with minor repairs to dressing 

rooms. 

o Re-painting ice surface – staff will re-paint the ice surface lines 

with minimal interruption to rink availability. Staff to schedule 

accordingly.    

o Closing the Fit-Plex for receptions – The Committee is 

recommending that the Fit-Plex be closed to facilitate this request. 

The interruption to Fit-Plex operations will be minimal as the Fit-

Plex is scheduled to be close during much of the event anyway, 

i.e. Good Friday, and limited hours on Saturday and Sunday..   

 

The Committee and staff are working on some additional fundraising 

opportunities for the event.   
 

 4.5 Championship Banner Location 
 

The Kensington Minor Hockey Association have requested the Committee’s 

consideration to relocate the banners and banner boxes at the Community 

Gardens Complex. The Committee referred the matter to staff to research and 

recommend options.  

 

 4.6 Update on Fitplex Promotion for 2015 
 

The promotions that have been developed and implemented by staff appear to 

be working as membership for the facility has increased over the past several 

months. The Committee and staff continue to investigate ways to promote and 

market the facility.   

 



Agenda 
Town of Kensington – Wellness and Culture Committee 

 

 4.7 Kraft Hockeyville Nomination 
  

CGC Manager, Robert Wood indicated he would approach some local youth 

hockey players to consider nominating the Town.  

 

 4.8 Safety netting at CGC 
 

Discussion was held around the need for additional safety netting around the 

Community Gardens Complex Ice surface. One quote had been requested and 

received from Seacor Athletic. An RFD is being circulated with the tentative 

agenda package and will be motioned for approval following the acceptance 

of this report.    

 

 4.9 Canada Flag location 
 

Discussion was held around relocating the Canadian Flag housed in the 

Community Gardens Complex to centre ice. At the next opportunity staff will 

ensure that the flag is hung from centre ice.  

 

 4.10 Harvest Festival Beach Volley Ball  
 

Staff were directed to discuss with any interested parties the possibility of 

hosting the annual beach volleyball tournament in 2015 and beyond.   

 

 4.11 Other Matters 
 

As in previous years, a request has been received from the Kensington and 

Area Minor Hockey Association for the Town to consider donating the ice 

time rental for their annual initiation tournament held on Islander Day. The 

Committee is recommending that Town Council approve the ice time donation 

as in previous years. A motion will be made following the acceptance of this 

report requesting Council’s support of the donation.  

 
 
ITEM 5: EVK SWIMMING POOL 
 

 5.1 Review areas of improvements  

 

Re-shingling the roof will be tendered shortly through the Community 

Services Commitee.  

 

The CAO identified the need for a new pool liner and pool cover in 2015. 

Quotes will be requested and a recommendation will be brought to Town 

Council through the Community Services Committee when prices are 

received. It has been identified previously that work is also required on the 

pool deck. Staff will investigate and bring for a recommendation accordingly.  

 

 



Agenda 
Town of Kensington – Wellness and Culture Committee 

 

 
ITEM 6: PARKS  
 
  6.1 John Hogg Kensington Public Forest Walk 

 

A discussion was held around the development history of the John A. Hogg 

Public Forest. Staff will gather additional information and bring back to the 

Committee.  

 

  

ITEM 7:  BALL PARKS  
 

7.1 Review areas of improvements for upcoming season 

  

It was noted that minor repairs are required for the 2015 season. The Town 

will be proceeding with the purchase of a new limer in 2015.  

  
 
ITEM 8: EVENTS/CELEBRATIONS 
 
  8.1 Update on 2015 Winter Carnival  

 

The events calendar was distributed to Committee members for review. 

 

  

 
The meeting was adjourned 8:30 pm.. 

  



 Town of Kensington - Request for Decision 
 

Topic: Safety Netting – Community Gardens Complex Ice 

Surface  

Date: February 5, 2015 

 

Proposal Summary:  
 
A need has been identified to install safety netting around the Community Gardens Complex Ice 

Surface. Currently, safety netting is installed at the northeast corner of the ice surface protecting the 

primary spectator area along the North side of the ice surface.   

 

The Wellness and Culture Committee directed staff to move forward with securing quotations to 

supply and install netting around the other corners of the ice surface such that the only remaining 

exposed areas would be the players and penalty benches. 

 

Staff requested quotes from Seacor Athletic and Hi-Field Construction. Hi-Field Construction 

indicated that they supply the netting through Seacor Atlantic thus only one quote was received. 

Seacor’s quote in the amount of $4,731.00 plus applicable taxes is for the supply and installation of 

three (3) pieces of clear monofilament protective netting (30’ x 100”, 38’ x 100” and 63’ x 100”) for 

the two corners at the west end of the ice surface and one corner by the Zamboni entrance. Further 

they will install boxed netting around the dehumidifier located at the east end of the rink.          

 
Benefits:  
 

 Will provide increased protection for arena patrons and spectators. 

 Will provide increased protection for the dehumidification system. 

. 

 

Disadvantages: 
 

 None Noted 

 

Policy Implications 
 

 None Noted 

 

Options: 
 

1. Proceed with the supply and installation of safety netting as proposed. 

2. Do not proceed with the project.  

 
Bids Received:   
 

Seacor Athletic - $4,731.00 including HST 

 

Costs: 
 
$4,731.00 including HST 

          

Source of Funding: 
 

2015 Capital Budget 



Recommendation/Comments: 
 
It is recommended by the Chief Administrative Officer and the Wellness and Culture Committee that 

Town Council consider and adopt the following resolution: 

 

THAT Town Council award the contract for the supply and installation of safety netting for the 

Community Gardens Complex Ice Surface to Seacor Athletic as per their quote dated January 28, 

2015 in the amount of $4,731.00 including HST.     

 

 



 

Agenda 
 

Wellness and Culture Committee 
Regular Meeting – Fourth Wednesday of the Month – 6:30 pm 

Council Chambers – Kensington Town Hall 
 

Chair:    Councillor Coreen Pickering 
Vice Chair:   Councillor Marvin Mill 
 
Committee Members:  Councillor David Doucette 
    Mayor Rowan Caseley 
 
Staff Members:  CAO, Geoff Baker 
    CGC Manager, Robert Wood 
 
 
Please ensure all cell phones and other electronic devices are turned off or placed on non-audible 

mode during the meeting.  

 
ITEM 1: CALL OF MEETING TO ORDER AND WELCOME 
 
Presiding: Councillor Coreen Pickering  

 
 
ITEM 2: DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
Action:  Members of the Committee who believe they may have a conflict of interest on 

any matter that will be discussed at this meeting should declare that potential 

conflict at this time, withdraw at the time of discussion and vacate the Council 

Chambers during deliberation and decision. 

 

 

ITEM 3: DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 
 

ITEM 4: COMMUNITY GARDENS COMPLEX 
 

 4.1 Status of Kool Kash 50/50 

 4.2 Status of Wind Turbine 

 4.3 Status of Digital Advertising Opportunity 

 4.4 Update on Major Midget Atlantic Championship – April 2015 

 4.5 Location Championship Banners 

 4.6 Update on Fitplex Promotion for 2015 

 4.7 Kraft Hockeyville  

 4.8 Safety netting at CGC 

 4.9 Canada Flag location   

 4.9a Other Matters 



Agenda 
Town of Kensington – Wellness and Culture Committee 

 

 

 

 
ITEM 5: EVK SWIMMING POOL 
 

 5.1 Review areas of improvements  

 5.2 Other  

 

ITEM 6: PARKS  
 
  6.1 John Hogg Kensington Public Forrest Walk 

  6.2 Other   

 

ITEM 7:  BALL PARKS  
 

  7.1 Review areas of improvements for upcoming season  

  7.2 Other  
 
ITEM 8: EVENTS / CELEBRATIONS 
 
  8.1 Update on 2015 Winter Carnival  

  8.2 Other   

 
ITEM 9: OTHER MATTERS 
 
  9.1 Town of Kensington welcome sign / planter boxes corner 

  9.2 Central Region Sports & Recreation Relationship  

  9.3 Kensington Water Shed  

 

ITEM 10: ADJOURNMENT 
  



TOWN OF KENSINGTON 
Finance and Administration Committee Report 

Wednesday, February 04, 2015 
6:00 PM 

 

 

Committee Members Present: Chair, Deputy Mayor Rodney Mann, Councillor Jeff Spencer, Councillor 

Mack MacLean, Mayor Rowan Caseley 

 

Staff Members Present:  Chief Administrative Officer, Geoff Baker, Deputy Administrator 

Wendy MacKinnon 

 

Visitors: Nil 

 

 

 

 

1. Call of Meeting to Order and Welcome 
 

1.1  Chair Mann called the meeting to order at 6:07 PM and welcomed committee members and 

staff. 

 

2. Declaration of Conflict of Interest 
 

2.1 No declarations of conflict of interest were made. 

 

3. Delegations/Presentations 
 

3.1 Nil 

 

4. Financial Statement Review 
 

4.1 Income Statement - The summary of our financial position is below and reflects our 

financial position for the month and year to date as shown in the summarized financial 

statements to be received following the acceptance of this report.  

 

Category Month YTD 
 Actual ($) Budget ($) Actual ($) Budget ($) 

Town  31,067.10  7,083.00  31,067.10  7,083.00 

CGC  11,016.07 -3,041.00 -11,016.07 -3,041.00 

Fire    4,451.94   2,084.00    4,451.94  2,084.00 

Consolidated  46,535.11   6,126.00  46,535.11  6,126.00 

 

 

The statements were reviewed by the Finance and Administration Committee and staff. 

Detailed discussion took place on the current financial position and specific department 

expenditures.  

 

Our Town statements are showing a surplus based on budget but that is a direct result of 

missing of invoices for January.  Since the committee meeting was only four days after the 



end of the month, not all of our invoices are in especially the electricity expense and snow 

clearing.  These will be reflected in February’s statements. 

 

Community Gardens Complex is showing a $11,017.17 surplus year to date.  The main 

component of the surplus is the missing expenses especially electricity and snow removal. 

 

The fire department revenue is showing a surplus of $4,451.94.  There were no issues 

noted. 

 

4.2 Due to the audit no balance sheet was available at the time of the meeting. 

 

4.3 Bills Lists (Town and Water and Pollution Control Corporation) – Bills for the Town and 

the Water and Pollution Control Corporation were reviewed by the Committee and staff. A 

detailed list of the bills for the Town for the month of December in the amount of 

$169,372.60 will be presented for payment following acceptance of this report. A detailed 

list of the bills for the Water and Pollution Control Corporation for the month of December 

in the amount of $492.85 will be presented for payment during the Water and Pollution 

Control Corporation meeting. 

 

4.4 Water and Pollution Control Corporation Income Statement –  

 

Category Month YTD 
 Actual ($) Budget ($) Actual ($) Budget ($) 

Water and Pollution 
Control Corp. 

11,146.20 800.00 11,146.20 800.00 

   

The committee reviewed the income statement of the Water and Polution Control 

Corporation and did not note any issues. 

 
5. Other Business 

 
5.1 Business/Vendor License – There was some talk regarding setting up a business registry to 

know what businesses are operating within the town for the primary purpose of emergency 

response, etc., i.e. police department should know who primary key holders are and the fire 

department should have an understanding of hazardous material storage, etc.    

 

5.2 Summerside Mayor’s Dinner for Youth – We were invited to attend the First Annual 

Mayor’s Dinner for Youth in support of Generation XX.  To show our support for 

Generation XX and their commitment to the youth, the committee is recommending that 

the Town purchase two tickets to this event valued at $100.00 each.  Generation XX is 

open to all youths which include many Kensington youths.   

 
5.3 Audit Update – The Audit has just begun with the weather playing its part.  We will have 

more information for our next meeting.  

6. Adjournment 
 

6.1 The meeting was adjourned at 8:17 pm. 



Amalgamated Dairies Limited 3915009014 $85.50

Amalgamated Dairies Limited 3915016013 $61.82

Amalgamated Dairies Limited 3915023015 $9.53

Amalgamated Dairies Limited 3915023013 $84.93

ADL Foods 2165232 $547.92

ADL Foods 2166463 $185.16

ADL Foods 2167399 $480.39

ADL Foods 2167043 $160.72

ADL Foods 2164697 $432.93

ADL Foods 2165553 $585.50

ADL Foods 2165554 $183.09

ADL Foods 2166082 $355.08

ADL Foods 2167043 $160.72

Andrew Griffin JAN 2015 RRSP $449.60

Kensington Bedford Hockey Exchange 2015 DONATION $500.00

Bell Mobility 356308 $199.50

Brad Parsons 2014 TAX INCENTIVE $858.41

Brenda MacIsaac JAN 2015 RRSP $265.04

CAMA 4534 $296.40

Central Coastal Tourism Partnership Inc. 2015 MEMBERSHIP $142.50

Charlottetown Police Association 6 $420.00

City of Summerside 1125991 $1,368.00

Clark Fuel Savers Ltd 1162 $199.50

Cogsdale MN0001552 $5,130.00

Connolly Security Systems Ltd. 40411 $273.60

Canada Revenue Agency Tax Centre OCT - DEC 2014 HST $8,252.22

PEI Crime Stoppers 2015 DONATION $225.00

Canadian Union of Public Employees JAN 2015 UNION DUE $432.63

D.W Mechanical 1423 $239.40

D.W Mechanical 1424 $307.80

D.W Mechanical 1425 $2,257.20

Davtech Analytical Services (Canada) Inc SI-73910 $915.57

Desjardins Card Services FCDQ 5494616338 $164.83

Desjardins Card Services FCDQ 5494616338 -A $43.95

Dunk River Industries 8381 $250.80

Eastlink FIRE JAN 9, 2015 $48.42

Eastlink FIRE JAN 14, 2015 $52.38

Eastlink FIRE DEPT FEB 7, 15 $48.42

Eastlink LIBRARY JAN 26, 15 $52.38

Eastlink TOWN HALL JAN 31, 15 $97.93

Eastlink JANUARY 31, 2015 $565.62

FCM 34792 $346.37

Frito Lay Canada 43754699 $126.36

Frito Lay Canada 43754754 $65.66

Town of Kensington Bills List January 2015



Frito Lay Canada 43754818 $65.93

Frito Lay Canada 43754884 $65.17

Frito Lay Canada 43754937 $137.34

Frontline Outfitters 18980 $340.20

Geoff Baker JAN 2015 MILEAGE $306.91

Goji's Charlottetown 16 $108.00

Goji's Charlottetown 31 $216.00

Goji's Charlottetown 36 $1.08

Green Diamond 762889 $212.95

Greg Beairsto 37 $80.00

Hewitt Rentals Inc 5070258 001 $106.60

Hewitt Rentals Inc 50741258 001 $106.60

Hewitt Rentals Inc 5071258 001 $106.60

Hewitt Rentals Inc 5072329 001 $71.07

HLM Enterprises Ltd 2013 TAX INCENTIVE $3,935.80

Holland College 538197 $356.79

Imageworks Communication Group 424-1 $1,118.63

Irving Oil 220316 $632.06

Irving Oil 219326 $434.65

Irving Oil 218204 $405.65

Irving Oil 219775 $728.85

Irving Oil 625271 $415.80

Irving Oil 56457 $517.55

Irving Oil 53689 $252.21

Irving Oil 45547 $366.59

Irving Oil 756864 $299.83

Irving Oil 452903 $369.02

Irving Oil 455308 $588.58

Irving Oil 623625 $618.79

Irving Oil 624121 $329.29

Irving Oil 624594 $287.54

Irving Oil 30692356 $253.61

Irving Oil 30686890 $417.57

Irving Oil 30681263 $181.37

Irving Oil 345787 $77.33

Irving Oil 327686 $337.09

Irving Oil 328322 $349.62

Island Petroleum 1287 $387.62

Island Petroleum 1330 $283.31

Island Petroleum 1424 $305.13

Island Petroleum 1508 $392.42

Island Petroleum 1507 $154.93

Island Petroleum 1637 $310.93

Island Petroleum 1684 $341.97

Island Petroleum 1781 $245.44

Island Petroleum 1780 $97.52

Island Petroleum 1893 $504.49



Jennifer Davison JAN 2015 FITPLEX $120.00

Kensington Agricultural Services 45022 $25.95

Kensington Agricultural Services 45535 $160.80

Kensington Agricultural Services 45515 $154.52

Kensington Agricultural Services 11236A $64.35

Kensington Country Store 530656 $10.25

Kensington Lions Club 2015 LEVEE $100.00

Kensington Wild Hockey Club 2015 DONATION $5,000.00

Kent Building Supplies 728064 $8.21

Kent Building Supplies 729725 $43.31

Kent Building Supplies 732639 $21.65

Kent Building Supplies 731297 $13.66

Ketchum Manufacturing Inc 48120 $62.03

Kim Caseley JAN CELL PHONE $30.00

Kim Mullett JAN 8, 2015 MILEAGE $11.75

Kole Waite 2014 TAX INCENTIVE $660.41

K'Town Auto Parts 20S143281 $182.29

K'Town Auto Parts 20S143737 $17.01

K'Town Auto Parts 20S143866 $11.13

K'Town Auto Parts 20S144004 $11.18

K'Town Auto Parts 20S144219 $129.60

K'Town Auto Parts 20S144215 $32.90

Langille Sharpening Service Inc 51608 $102.60

Lewis Sutherland JAN 2015 RRSP $604.40

Liberal Party of PEI District 20 JANUARY 6, 2015 $100.00

Linkletter's Welding Ltd 344326 $345.41

MacInnes Express(1983) Ltd 163219 $173.20

Malpeque Bay Credit Union JAN 2015 RRSP $2,269.20

Minister of Finance and Municipal Affairs 2015 MUNICIPAL ORIEN $300.00

Minister of Finance and Municipal Affairs 274094 $25.00

Minister of Finance and Municipal Affairs 274535 $384.75

MJS Marketing & Promotions 2485006 $79.80

MJS Marketing & Promotions 2488011 $45.60

Orkin Canada IN-5933895 $62.70

PEI Association of Exhibitions 061 $400.00

Pepsico 48610012 $1,454.19

Pitney Bowes JAN 13, 2015 $360.91

Prodigy Sports 9460 $102.32

Provincial Auto Parts Ltd 996-374912 $302.26

Provincial Auto Parts Ltd 996-376096 $392.43

Recreation PEI Inc 1063 $89.95

Rent A Wreck 8877 $58.54

Revolution Media 578 $342.00

Rolly's Wholesale 1802340 $282.81

Rolly's Wholesale 1798528 $267.06

Kensington Save Easy 03 6418 $86.83

Kensington Save Easy 01 5039 $13.34



Kensington Save Easy 01 8083 $24.45

Kensington Save Easy 03 9146 $52.36

Scotia Securities JAN 2015 RRSP $334.14

Scotiabank Visa Jan-15 $249.09

Seacor Athletic SG113084 $1,024.63

Sherry's Heating Service 1785 $260.49

Socan 41 $210.98

Spring Valley Building Centre Ltd 554263 $305.30

Suncor Energy Products Partnership JAN 11, 2015 $473.99

Superior Sanitation 549137 $228.00

T & K Fire Safety Equipment Ltd 210063 $412.68

T & K Fire Safety Equipment Ltd 210293 $524.21

Telus JAN 9, 2015 $645.81

Yellow Pages Group 15-1070850 $19.89

Subtotal $66,433.53

January Payroll $102,939.07

Total January Bills $169,372.60



GENERAL REVENUE

Actual Budget Variance Actual YTD Budget Variance Annual Budget  % Full Year

General Revenues $72,984.04 $78,449.00 -$5,464.96 $72,984.04 $78,449.00 -$5,464.96 $921,178.00 8%

Police Service $1,199.80 $2,500.00 -$1,300.20 $1,199.80 $2,500.00 -$1,300.20 $30,000.00 4%

Town Hall Rent $18,578.72 $10,800.00 $7,778.72 $18,578.72 $10,800.00 $7,778.72 $150,884.00 12%

Recreation $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,200.00 0%

Sales of Service $23,132.20 $30,600.00 -$7,467.80 $23,132.20 $30,600.00 -$7,467.80 $367,200.00 6%

Subtotal Revenue $115,894.76 $122,349.00 -$6,454.24 $115,894.76 $122,349.00 -$6,454.24 $1,474,462.00 8%

GENERAL EXPENSES

Town Hall $9,619.49 $13,045.00 $3,425.51 $9,619.49 $13,045.00 $3,425.51 $163,290.00 6%

General Town $25,167.57 $30,264.00 $5,096.43 $25,167.57 $30,264.00 $5,096.43 $398,617.00 6%

Police Department $20,813.82 $30,816.00 $10,002.18 $20,813.82 $30,816.00 $10,002.18 $403,522.00 5%

Public Works $17,286.91 $24,257.00 $6,970.09 $17,286.91 $24,257.00 $6,970.09 $233,107.00 7%

Train Station $1,093.97 $2,392.00 $1,298.03 $1,093.97 $2,392.00 $1,298.03 $28,004.00 4%

Recreation & Park $562.37 $355.00 -$207.37 $562.37 $355.00 -$207.37 $63,910.00 1%

Sales of Service $10,283.53 $14,137.00 $3,853.47 $10,283.53 $14,137.00 $3,853.47 $184,012.00 6%

Subtotal Expenses $84,827.66 $115,266.00 $30,438.34 $84,827.66 $115,266.00 $30,438.34 $1,474,462.00 5%

Net Income (Deficit) $31,067.10 $7,083.00 -$23,984.10 $31,067.10 $7,083.00 -$23,984.10

Community Gardens Revenue $35,063.12 $33,600.00 $1,463.12 $35,063.12 $33,600.00 $1,463.12 $393,100.00 9%

Community Gardens Expenses $24,047.05 $36,641.00 $12,593.95 $24,047.05 $36,641.00 $12,593.95 $393,100.00 6%

Net Income (Deficit) $11,016.07 -$3,041.00 -$14,057.07 $11,016.07 -$3,041.00 -$14,057.07

Fire Revenues $16,562.00 $16,628.00 -$66.00 $16,562.00 $16,628.00 -$66.00 $199,536.00 8%

Fire Department Expenses $12,110.06 $14,544.00 $2,433.94 $12,110.06 $14,544.00 $2,433.94 $199,536.00 6%

Net Income (Deficit) $4,451.94 $2,084.00 -$2,367.94 $4,451.94 $2,084.00 -$2,367.94

Consolidated Net Income (Deficit) $46,535.11 $6,126.00 -$40,409.11 $46,535.11 $6,126.00 -$40,409.11

Water & Sewer Revenue $45,789.17 $44,545.00 -$1,244.17 $45,789.17 $44,545.00 -$1,244.17 $534,540.00 9%

Water & Sewer Expenses $34,642.97 $43,745.00 $9,102.03 $34,642.97 $43,745.00 $9,102.03 $534,540.00 6%

Water & Sewer Net Income (Deficit) $11,146.20 $800.00 -$10,346.20 $11,146.20 $800.00 -$10,346.20

Water and Pollution Control Corporation 

TOWN OF KENSINGTON

Year End Income Statement Comparison of Actual to Budget for January 2015

Current Month Year to Date

Community Gardens Complex

Fire Department



 

Agenda 
 

Finance and Administration 
Regular Meeting – Wednesday before Regular Council Meeting – 6:00 pm 

Council Chambers – Kensington Town Hall 
 

Chair:    Deputy Mayor Rodney Mann 
Vice Chair:   Councillor Jeff Spencer 
 
Committee Members:  Councillor Mack Maclean 
    Mayor Rowan Caseley 
 
Staff Members:  CAO, Geoff Baker 
    Deputy Administrator, Wendy MacKinnon 
     
 
 
Please ensure all cell phones and other electronic devices are turned off or placed on non-audible 

mode during the meeting.  

 
ITEM 1: CALL OF MEETING TO ORDER AND WELCOME 
 
Presiding: Deputy Mayor Rodney Mann  

 
 
ITEM 2: DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
Action:  Members of the Committee who believe they may have a conflict of interest on 

any matter that will be discussed at this meeting should declare that potential 

conflict at this time, withdraw at the time of discussion and vacate the Council 

Chambers during deliberation and decision. 

 

 

ITEM 3: DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 
 

 

ITEM 4: FINANCIAL STATENMENT REVIEW 
 
 4.1 Income Statement 

 4.2 Balance Sheet 

 4.3 Bills Lists (Town and Water and Pollution Control Corporation) 

 4.4 Water and Pollution Control Corporation Income Statement 

 
ITEM 5: OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 5.1 Status of Business/Vendor Licensing Bylaw 



Agenda 
Town of Kensington – Finance and Administration Committee 

 

 5.2 Summerside’s Mayor’s Dinner For Youth 

 5.3 Status of 2014 Audit 

 

ITEM 6: ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        

Town of Kensington PO Box 418 Kensington PE C0B 1M0 

w: www.townofkensington.com | e: mail@townofkensington.com | t: (902) 836-3781 | fax: (902) 836-3741 

 

Mayors Report to Town Council 
February 9, 2015 

 

Councillors, Staff and Residents 
 

I am pleased to provide this report of the activities and discussions where I have represented the Town of 

Kensington over the past month. 

 

Functions attended - I have had the pleasure to attend the following as Mayor: Meeting with Central Coastal 

Tourism Partnership (CCTP) , PEI Rotary Banquet for Premier’s Annual Address, Launch of PEI Wellness 

Strategy, Bedford and Kensington 47
th
 Annual official opening and closing banquet, and have a scheduled 

presentation to make to Rev. Anne Dalziel Singer upon her retirement on Feb 8.  

 

Office Hours – I continue to spend as many hours in the office as possible and make myself available for 

meetings with the public or sit in on meetings with Mr. Baker and others when requested.        

 

Town Development - Mr. Baker and I met with one local business following last month’s Council meeting to 

follow up on direction given by Council during the In Camera meeting.  I am pleased to report negotiations 

went well and we should have a formal direction to present to Council for approval.   

 

Tourism – Had discussion with CCTP and others who have expressed interest in working with Kensington to 

maximize the benefits of growing this important sector on PEI and what we might be able to do. No direction 

given or asked but talking is one of the first steps. 

 

Lobbying – Had the opportunity to meet with Mr. Wade MacLachlan, Liberal Leader Designate as well as Mr. 

Rob Lantz, candidate running for the leadership of the Conservative Party. Both were informed of our interest in 

seeing the province move forward with an acceptable funding formula that would be enshrined in legislation. 

 

47th Annual Bedford/Kensington Friendship Hockey Exchange – What an excellent opportunity for our 

young Pee Wee Hockey Players.  A real tribute to the founders and all the parents, coaches, volunteers, 

sponsors and alumni who have kept this going for 47 years. This event provides a wonderful way to showcase 

the Town of Kensington and surrounding communities.  I would like to see the Town of Kensington continue or 

increase its financial commitment either through additional dollars or more in kind contribution. This exchange 

can only survive with support from the community.  When times comes next year I trust we will do all we can to 

help this process and now is the time to start thinking about what we as a Town can do to celebrate the 50
th
 year 

coming up in 2018.     

 

Kensington North Watersheds Association – Mr. Baker and I met with Barry Murray to discuss opportunities 

for the Town of Kensington and Kensington North Watersheds Association to work together on projects of 

mutual interest to both parties. Mr. Baker has mentioned some of these in the past. Potential projects being 

considered are: 1. Written Well field Protection Plan 2. Collection Day in the spring for Residents to drop of 

hazardous chemical, paints, pesticides, oils, etc. at a specified location (ie Community Gardens Complex) 3. Set 

up a plan for the planting of trees, etc. on the Gorman Well field location 4. Walking trails behind the Alysha 

ToombsPark and 5. Clean up old metal around waste treatment and workshop.  More meeting to be held on 

specifics and what will be done but most of the work and planning would be done by the Watershed group.  It is 

in the best interest of all for these projects to proceed and obviously they could be multiyear projects. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        

Town of Kensington PO Box 418 Kensington PE C0B 1M0 

w: www.townofkensington.com | e: mail@townofkensington.com | t: (902) 836-3781 | fax: (902) 836-3741 

 

 

Pink Shirt Day – I have been requested to proclaim February 25, 2015 as Pink Shirt Day in the Town of 

Kensington which has become a national movement to stop bullying. I am prepared to sign the proclamation and 

it has been included as part of my report. If Council has any reservation or concerns with my signing such a 

proclamation then please make them know following the presentation of this report. If Council supports my 

decision I will sign the proclamation at the end of the meeting. 

 

Rowan Caseley 

Mayor – Town of Kensington 





 
 
 
 

Mayor: Rowan Caseley   
    Chief Administrator Officer: Geoff Baker   

Deputy Administrator: Wendy MacKinnon 
Incorporated 1914 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Proclamation 
 

 
WHEREAS,  Pink Shirt Day was originally started as a protest by David Shepherd and Travis 

Price against a bullying incident at a high school in Nova Scotia. The story 
garnered international attention and as a result of their brave actions, cities and 
towns around the world are now hosting Pink Shirt Days of their own; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the Town of Kensington proudly joins those towns and cities in their efforts to stop 

bullying.  
 

 
Therefore, I, Rowan Caseley, Mayor of the Town of Kensington do hereby proclaim  
 
February 25, 2015 as Pink Shirt Day in the Town of Kensington, Prince Edward Island.  

 
 
 

Dated this 9th day of February, 2015 
 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
 

Rowan Caseley, Mayor 
Town of Kensington 

 

 
        



 

 

       MUNICIPAL CODE OF CONDUCT 
 

 

 

 

 

This Code of Conduct establishes guidelines for the ethical, inter-personal conduct of Council members and assists in 

providing for the good governance of the Town of Kensington.  

 

STANDARDS OF CONDUCT 
 

Members of Town Council shall uphold the law and, at all times, shall: 

 

(a) seek to advance the common good of the Town of Kensington as a whole while conscientiously representing 

the community; 

 

(b) perform the functions of office truly, faithfully and impartially to the best of their knowledge and ability, in 

accordance with the core values of Integrity – giving the Town of Kensington’s interests absolute priority over 

private individual interests;  Honesty – being truthful and open; Objectivity – making decisions based on a 

careful and fair analysis of the facts; Accountability – being accountable to each other and to the public for 

decisions taken; and Leadership – confronting challenges and providing direction on the issues of the day; 

 

(c) uphold this Code as a means of promoting the standards of behaviour expected of Council members and 

enhancing the credibility and integrity of Council in the broader community.  

  
 COUNCIL MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

Conduct to be Observed:   Members of Council recognize that they are agents of the public whose primary objective 

is to address the needs of the citizens; as such, they are entrusted with upholding and adhering to the by-laws of the 

Town of Kensington as well as all applicable provincial and federal laws. As public servants, Council members shall 

observe a high standard of morality in the conduct of their official duties and faithfully fulfill the responsibilities of 

their offices, regardless of their personal or financial interests. 

 

Dedicated Service:   All members of Council shall faithfully work toward developing programs to address the needs 

of the citizens in the course of their duties. Each shall strive to perform at a level that is expected of those who work in 

the public’s interest. 

 

Respect for Decision-making Process:   All members of Council recognize the responsibility of the Mayor to 

accurately communicate the decisions of the Council, even if they disagree with such decisions, such that respect for 

the decision-making processes of Council is fostered. 

 

Conduct at Meetings:   Members of Council shall respect the chair, colleagues, staff and members of the public 

present during Council meetings or other proceedings of the Town of Kensington. Meetings shall provide an 

environment for transparent and healthy debate on matters requiring decision-making.  

 

Release of Confidential Information Prohibited:   No member of Council shall disclose or release to any member of 

the public confidential information acquired by virtue of their office, in either oral or written form except when 

required by law or authorized by the municipality to do so. Members of Council shall not use confidential information 

for personal or private gain, or for the gain of relatives or any person or corporation.  

 

Gifts and Benefits:   No member of Council shall show favouritism or bias toward any vendor, contractor or to others 

doing business with the municipality. Members of Council shall not accept gifts or favours from any vendor, contractor 

or others doing business with the Town of Kensington personally, or through a family member or friend, which could 

give rise to a reasonable suspicion of influence to show favour or disadvantage to any individual or organization. 

 

Use of Public Property:   No member of Council shall request the use of municipal-owned vehicles, equipment, 

materials or property for personal convenience or profit, except where such privileges are granted to the general public.  

Members of Council shall ensure that the business of the municipality is conducted with efficiency and shall avoid 

waste, abuse and extravagance in the provision or use of municipal resources. 

 

Obligations to Citizens:   No member of Council shall grant any special consideration, treatment, or advantage to any 

citizen or group of citizens beyond that which is accorded to all citizens.  

 

Interpersonal Behaviour:   Members of Council shall treat every person, including other Council members, corporate 

employees, individuals providing services on a contract for service and the public, with dignity, understanding and 

gbaker
Typewritten Text
Item 9

gbaker
Typewritten Text

gbaker
Typewritten Text

gbaker
Typewritten Text

gbaker
Typewritten Text

gbaker
Typewritten Text

gbaker
Typewritten Text

gbaker
Typewritten Text



respect and will endeavour to ensure that the municipal work environment is free from discrimination, bullying and 

harassment. 

 

Community Representation:  Members of Council shall observe a high standard of professionalism when 

representing the municipality and in their dealings with members of the broader community. 

  
 GOOD GOVERNANCE 
 

Members of Council accept that effective governance of the Town of Kensington is critical to ensuring that decisions 

are taken in the best interests of all stakeholders and to enable the Town to function as a good corporate citizen. 

  
 GOVERNMENT RELATIONSHIPS 
 

Members of Council recognize the importance of working constructively with other orders of government and 

organizations, in Prince Edward Island and beyond, to achieve the goals of the Town of Kensington. 

  
 CONFLICT OF INTEREST AVOIDANCE 
 

Members of Council are committed to making decisions impartially and in the best interests of the Town of 

Kensington. Each recognizes the legal necessity to fully observe the requirements of the PEI Municipalities Act, Part 

VI, Section 23 with regard to the disclosure and avoidance of conflicts of interest.  

  
 REPORTING BREACHES 
 

Persons who have reason to believe that this Code has been breached in any way are encouraged to bring their concerns 

forward.  No adverse action shall be taken against any Council member or Town of Kensington employee who, acting 

in good faith, brings forward such information. 

  
 CORRECTIVE ACTION 
 

Any reported violation of the Code will be subject to investigation by the Council. Violation of this Code by a member 

of Council may constitute a cause for corrective action. If an investigation finds a member has breached a provision of 

the Code, Council may impose corrective action commensurate with the nature and severity of the breach, which may 

include a formal warning or reprimand. 

 

 

 

I, ________________________________________ declare that as a duly elected member of the Council of the 

 

  

__________________________________ I acknowledge and, without reservation, support the Council Members’ Code  

 

 

of Conduct. 

 

 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Signature of Council Member 

 

 

 

 

Declared  this   ______ day of _________________, 20_____, 

 

 

Before me: 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 



gbaker
Typewritten Text
Item 10
































































































